
   

            
 Purchasing Division 
 
 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 3 
 
DATE:  March 2, 2021 
FROM:  City of Grand Junction Purchasing Division 
TO:   All Offerors 
RE: Design/Build Canyon View Lighting Replacement Project RFP-4864-21-DH 
 
Offerors responding to the above referenced solicitation are hereby instructed that the requirements 
have been clarified, modified, superseded and supplemented as to this date as hereinafter described. 
 
Please make note of the following clarifications: 
 
1.  Q. Does Park & Recreation have an activity schedule?  
 

A. Due to COVID-19, activities being scheduled are sporadic. As league and scheduling take 
place, we will contact the awarded contractor and work with them for project scheduling.  

 
2.  Q. Does the City have a specific bid bond form? 
 

A. No, contractors may utilize any standard forms provided by their surety.  
 
3.  Q. When can we start? 
 

A. Contractor may start upon notice to proceed once signed contract, payment & performance 
bonds, and insurance certificate are in place. As per solicitation document, the tentative 
contract signing date is April 22, 2021.  

 
4.  Q. When do we need to be finished? 
 

A. Entire project (full design and construction) must be completed no later than December 13, 
2021.  

 
5.  Q. Will we be able to close a field for trench work? 
 

A. For any trench work that may be required, the City will work with the awarded contractor to 
coordinate trenching requirements necessary. Most trenches are outside the fields.  The 
preference is to minimize any closures, if any are necessary. 

 
6.  Q. Can we bring our subs back out to this site? 
 



   

A. Yes, contractors may revisit the site with their subs. Note that certain areas may be closed. No 
questions are to be asked to any City staff beside the senior buyer of the project. No formal 
second site visit will be offered.  

 
7.  Q. Where will the staging area be?  
 

A. The City will provide an area for equipment storage. This will be coordinated with the City 
project manager and the awarded contractor. 

 
8.  When contractors develop their strategy and implementation plan for this project, please note that 
the month of July is considered a “rest period for the park” and no sporting events will be scheduled.  
 
9. Q.  Can the city please provide electrical drawings and/or as builds? 
 

A.   Please see the attached as-built drawings for bidding purposes.   Actual/current conditions 
will need to be verified in the field prior to construction. 
 
10. Q. Are there any problems with the current electrical? 
 

A. There are no current problems and the City expects/desires to utilize as much of the existing 
electrical infrastructure (underground cabling) as possible but will be relying on contractors’ 
recommendations if upgrades or replacements are needed.  

 
11. Q. What needs to be done about the nest in the one light?  
 

A. CPW has been contacted.  At this time, we do not believe that there will be any special 
requirements for the bidders.  Any protective measures/time restrictions will be communicated 
to the bidders/contractors as information is received. 

 
12. Q. Is this RFP only for the field lighting? 
 

A. Per the solicitation document, this RFP is for field lighting, infrastructure, and equipment for 
operation of new system.  

 
13. Q. What is the City’s tree protection guidelines?  
 

A. Please see the following attached Grand Junction City Forester (GJCF) Tree Protection 
Specifications.  

 
14. Q. For trenching and/or damaged grass agrees, what does the City want to use? Sod, seeding, or 
turf?  
 

A. In the high traffic areas sod shall be utilized, in the low use areas seed shall be utilized. 
 
15. Q. Can you provide additional information on cell tower on pole lighting lease agreements fir the 
following: 
 a. Can we add the new lighting to the pole? Who with Verizon would give us that approval? 
  A.   A structural analysis will be required for any additional loading to the pole. If it passes,  

lighting can be added. 
 b. If the lighting cannot go back on the pole, what is the clearance needed for the new pole away  

from the cell tower? 



   

 A.  The answer to this is still being researched.  It will be provided to the awarded Contractor. 
 c. Do we work directly with Verizon or do we work with Front Range Wireless? 
  A.  Verizon's property management group. 
 

A. The City waiting to hear back from Verizon on this question. As soon as they provide a 
response, we will provide that information. 

 
16. Q. Can the City confirm the thickness of the sidewalk that the equipment will be driving on? 
 

A. Typical Sidewalk is presumed to be 4 inches of non-reinforced concrete.  The 
decorative/scored concrete around the core/center of the ball fields is presumed to be 5 inches 
of concrete with #4 rebar 18 inches on center – both ways.  Each of these concrete 
thicknesses will need to be confirmed by the contractor prior to driving equipment on them. 

 
17. Q. Can the City provide marking verification of all sprinkler heads and lines? 
 

A. Please see the attached as-builts.  Additionally, we will mark out the irrigation mainline and do 
our best to mark laterals and irrigation heads.  

 
18. Q. Can trenches remain open overnight? 
 

A. Per the City specifications, no open trenches are to remain overnight or when work is not being 
conducted. However, if the project requires some trenches to remain open for some time 
period, the contractor is responsible for coordinating and communicating with City project 
manager and providing safety measures necessary to maintain public and property safety.  

 
19. Q. Major water line map  
 

A. Please see attached as-built drawings and please reference the City GIS mapping for 
assumed locations. 

 
20. Q. Can the City provide location of storm drains? 
 

A. For storm drain locations, contractors may utilize the City’s GIS system on the City’s webpage 
at https://www.gjcity.org/maps.  

 
21. Q. How much of the foundations does the City want removed when a pole is removed? 
 

A. Minimum of 2 feet below the existing surface elevations. 
 
22. Q. Is it the contractors responsibly to dispose of the poles? 
 

A. Per the solicitation document, it is the contractor’s responsibility to provide removal and 
disposal of all materials, products, etc. They City recommends that contractors reach out to 
local little leagues that have shown interest in reusing these items. Monument Little League 
showed some interest. 

 
23. Q. What is the voltage on current lighting? 
 

A. The City believes this to be 480 volt. Please reference attached as-built drawings. 
 

https://www.gjcity.org/maps


   

24. Q. What does the City want done with the spoils? 
 

A. The City shall provide a site located near the project site.  
 
25. Q. Do you want to maintain/keep the one switch light controls? 
 

A. Yes, however the City is also interested in having phone app controls as well.  
 
26. Q. Is there an active network? 
 

A. There is currently no active wireless network at Canyon View Park.  
 
27. Q. Does the City have an existing software? 
 

A. The City of Grand Junction does not currently have any software running the sports field 
lighting at this time.  

 
28. Q. How is the existing field lighting metered? Locations? 
 

A. We believe all associate meters are in the Grand Shelter Electrical Room.  
 
29. Q. Does the City want the contractor to provide a contingency fee line item when pricing this 
project? 
 

A. This is a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) proposal.  It is at the Contractor’s discretion if 
they include any contingency with their GMP. 

 
30. Q. Can the City provide pole boxes for wiring? 
 

A. No.  The contractor shall be responsible for providing any pole boxes required for the project. 
 
31.  Q.  Please confirm that IBC 2018, 115MPH is to be used for structural criteria per the City of 
Grand Junction and Mesa County building department? 
 
 A.  The City will default to the Mesa County Building Department's criteria.  It is the Contractor’s 
responsibility to confirm with Mesa County Building Department. 
 
32.  Q.  Must lighting manufacturers provide a minimum number of project references utilizing the 
same technology within the state of Colorado? 5 is a typical number for similar scope bids. 
 
 A.  Contractor references do not need to be for the same technology, and do not have to be 
within the state of Colorado.  Per Section 4.3, Successfully completed three (3) similar projects of 
scope and size within the last five (5) years.  
 
33.  Q.  Must IDA Dark Skies compliance approval letter be submitted to the City as part of 
preproduction submittal? 
 
 A.  No approval letter is required as part of the preproduction submittal.  However, as per the 
solicitation documents, Contractor must obtain IDA Dark Skies certification for the project upon 
completion. 
 



   

34.  Q.  Is IDA Dark Skies on site audit required post lighting installation? This will provide the City 
true accreditation. Will both the manufacturer and installing contractor be responsible to make any 
necessary changes at their own cost should the facility fail on site audit? 
 
 A.  Contractor shall meet all IDA Dark Skies requirements necessary for the City to obtain proper 
accreditation.  If IDA Dark Skies require modification/correction to the project in order for the City to 
receive proper accreditation, all modifications/corrections shall be at the expense of the Contractor. 
 
35.  Q.  Light levels listed in Addendum 2 do not meet industry recommended standards for 
recreation sporting facilities. Confirm that the lighting requirements are 50/30FC for softball and 30FC 
for soccer per IESNA recommendations for recreational sports lighting. These will meet requirements 
for hosting tournaments. 
 
 A.  Light levels for both softball and soccer fields shall meet the IESNA recommendations for 
recreational sports lighting. 
 
36.  Q.  Will direct buried steel poles be allowed? These face similar corrosion issues associated with 
the existing structures that have failed. Must all proposed poles utilize either anchor bolt foundations 
or pre-cast foundations that remove all steel components of the pole from being below grade in a 
corrosive environment? 
 
 A.  The City would prefer a non-corrosive system however the City will consider other options. 
 
37.  Q.  Must communication costs associated with any controls system be included for the entire 
length of manufacturer’s warranty period per industry standard? 
 
 A.  Reference question and answer #5 of Addendum 2. 
 
38.  Q.  Will integrated drivers be allowed or must all fixtures provide remote drivers at 10’ above 
grade for easy access for maintenance. This would replicate the current set up with remoted ballast 
for easy access. 
 
 A.  10’ above grade shall be the maximum height for remote drivers.  Integrated drivers shall not 
be allowed. 
 
39.  Q.  Must manufacturers provide on-site testing and training once system is installed? If testing 
reveals that promised light levels are not being met must contractors and manufacturers make 
appropriate repairs/replacements at own cost to meet submitted performance? 
 
 A.  Yes, manufacture must provide on-site testing and training upon project completion.  If testing 
reveals proper lighting levels are not being met, the Contractor shall be responsible for 
modifications/corrections to bring lighting levels to IESNA and IDA Dark Skies requirements. 
 
40.  Q.  Must all poles be hot dipped galvanized? This galvanizes the pole inside and out eliminating 
the previous lighting systems corrosion issues. Spray on galvanization usually will not coat every 
exposed surface of steel, inside and out. 
 
 A.  The City prefers a non-corrosive system, but will consider other options. 
 
41.  Q.  Permit(s) are to be issued through which municipality? 
 



   

 A.  Any permit(s) required for the project should be obtained through the Mesa County Building 
Department. 
 
42.  Q.  Other than the electrical portion of permitting, what other permits will be required? 
 
 A.  It is the Contractor’s responsibility to verify what permits may be required for the project. 
 
43.  Q.  Page 25 of the Request for Proposal package states we are to furnished “audited” financial 
statements.   Is this corrected that they must be “audited”? 
 
 A.  Contractor may furnish “reviewed” or “audited” financial statements for this project. 
 
44.  Q.  Are there any specific potholing requirements? 
 
 A.  The Contractor is responsible for researching and following any federal, state, and county 
rules and regulations pertaining to this.  Refer to the City’s Standard Contract Documents. 
 
The original solicitation for the project noted above is amended as noted.  
 
All other conditions of subject remain the same. 
 
Respectfully, 

 
Duane Hoff Jr., Senior Buyer 
City of Grand Junction, Colorado 
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Grand Junction City Forester (GJCF) Tree Protection Specifications 

1. Existing trees to be preserved in public rights of way (ROW) or public places shall be protected
per GJCF standards and practices. Tree protection shall be:

A. Installed prior to commencement of demolition and/or construction activities
B. Inspected and approved by GJCF staff
C. Remain in place and as approved until Certificate of Occupancy or Substantial Completion

and Final Acceptance is issued
2. Tree protection requirements:

A. Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) shall be installed at the dripline, furthest extent of tree canopy,
or is equal to eighteen inches radially from the tree for every one inch of trunk diameter at
breast height (DBH = 4.5' above soil line), whichever is greater
▪ Reduced TPZ areas must be approved by GJCF

B. Install six foot (6') chain link fencing prior to commencement of project construction
activities
▪ With approval of GJCF, 4’ orange construction fencing may be acceptable in place of

chain link depending on potential impacts of activity 
C. GJCF staff shall inspect and approve boundaries of tree protection zone(s) prior to

commencement of demolition or construction activities
D. Once TPZ is in place, the following are not permitted within TPZ without prior written

approval from GJCF:
▪ Entrance and/or access
▪ Moving, resizing, removing, or altering in any manner
▪ Storage of materials/debris/equipment
▪ Construction activities including but not limited to: rototilling, trenching, grading,

installation of underground utilities and/or site improvements, landscaping, irrigation 
work  

▪ Irrigation line work shall be completed by directional bore or hand-dig method
E. "Tree Protection Zone" signs shall remain in place as posted by GJCF and shall be

maintained in the condition in which they were installed
F. Tree Pruning for clearance issues must have prior authorization by GJCF staff
G. No root 2 inches or larger shall be cut; consult with GJCF staff

3. Existing ROW or public place trees approved for removal by OCF must be protected in place 
until removed by an GJCF-licensed tree contractor to avoid structural failures:

A. A GJCF tree removal permit is required
B. Tree removal permits are not included with building permits and/or plan approval and must 

be obtained separately from the GJCF
4. Clear visibility into TPZ must be maintained. All construction banners, screens, barriers, and/or 

signs (except GJCF-posted TPZ signs) must be semi-transparent and not impede inspection of 
TPZ by GJCF staff

5. For projects with a duration of 5 days or longer:
A. Protected trees shall be deep-root watered at a minimum interval of once every two weeks 

when temperatures are at or above 40-degrees
B. Trees shall be watered at the rate of 20 gallons per inch caliper

▪ OCF may ask for documented proof of watering and/or treatment.
6. Tree removal without permit and damages to public trees may be subject to the following:

A. Responsible party for tree removal or tree damage shall be responsible for lost value based 
on industry standard tree appraisal methods as determined by GJCF 

http://www.gjcity.org/
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